
BOULDER CITY MUNICIPAL POOL AD HOC COMMITTEE MEETING

November 19, 2019
(Agenda previously posted in accordance with NRS 241.O2O.3 (a))
The first meeting of the Boulder City Municipal Pool Ad Hoc Committee was called to order by Chairman Kiernan McManus at 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, November 19, 2019 in the Council Chamber, City Hall, 401 California Avenue, Boulder City, Nevada.
Present:

Kiernan McManus, Chairman



James Adams, Vice Chairman




Chad Anderson, Member




Sara Carroll, Member




Carol Jefferies, Member




Matthew Di Teresa, Member

Martin Rihel, Member

Also present:

Roger Hall, Director of Parks & Recreation




Diane Pelletier, Finance Director




Keegan Littrell, Public Works Director

 


Julie Calloway, Parks & Recreation Manager
Cheree Brennan, Aquatic Coordinator
Absent

Terry Stevens, Member
Flag Salute

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Fred Voltz – provided public comments verbatim attached to November 19, 2019 meeting minutes
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
1. 
For possible action: Approval of the minutes from the October 2019 meeting of the Municipal Ad Hoc Pool Committee.  
Motion: To approve the October 2019 Minutes 

Moved by: Member
Adams
Seconded by: Member Carroll
Vote: all agreed   
AYE: Chairman Kiernan McManus, Member James Adams, Member Chad Anderson, Member Sara Carroll, Member Matthew Di Teresa, Member Carol Jefferies, and Member Martin Rihel (7)
NAY: None (0)
Absent: Member Terry Stevens
The motion was approved. 

2. For possible action: Presentation by Mike Mintenko regarding Myrtha

Pools

A. Information regarding a Myrtha Pool tour opportunity

B. Discussion regarding the possibility of a Myrtha Pool in Boulder City
Director of Sales for Myrtha Pools, Mike Mintenko, presented the members with information on Italian Company Myrtha Pools, their design technology and the possibility of a Myrtha Pool for Boulder City.  He described the modular engineered, laminated pvc over stainless steel product, and explained the benefits of the Myrtha Pool. 

He said the Myrtha Pool never requires re-plastering, is water-tight, lighter and quicker to install compared to a concrete pool.  
Members Jefferies asked if this pool needs a concrete foundation prior to install and inquired about the cleaning of the pool.  
Mr. Mintenko explained that Myrtha pools are frequently used as special event pool for swim competitions around the world. He said that set up for a special event pool would take about 10 days but that for a permanent build construction would be 14-16 week process to construct.  He said after the event in December at Mandalay Bay, two pools will be available for purchase at a discount. He also invited members of the Ad Hoc Committee to see the assembly of the Myrtha Pools the week of Dec. 8th for the Mandalay swim competition. Members can also tour under the structured Myrtha Pool during the competition to see the mechanics of the pool.  At the end of the swim meet, the pool can be disassembled, put on pallets for delivery and storage for several years without compromising the pool. Mr. Mintenko explained the warranty that comes with a Myrtha Pool and recommended a surge tank instead of a surge trench system. He also said that Myrtha Pools have pool contractors in surrounding states that install Myrtha Pools.  He further explained that there is a Myrtha Pool academy that contractors are required to attend for installation of Myrtha Pools. Member Anderson asked for more specific costs associated with the purchasing, storage, and construction of a special event Myrtha Pool. Chairman McManus thanked Mr. Mintenko for his information and members can coordinate tours of the Mandalay Bay special event pool through Parks and Recreation Manager, Julie Calloway. 
3. For possible action: Verbal reports and possible discussion regarding

committee member’s tour of the current Boulder City Pool Complex

Members expressed their opinion on the current facility.   Member Rihel said that he felt the facility really is in bad shape and a lot of it needs to be replaced. Member Jefferies said that at this point the facility needs something major. Member Di Teresa expressed surprise with the visible deterioration of the mechanical room and said the outlook of the current facility is not good. Member Carrol said she swims at the pool almost daily and is tired of the closures due to various mechanical issues.  She wants a pool that works for everyone in the community. Member Anderson expressed concern about the shape of the pool, the surface cracks and specifically the delamination of the surge trench. Member Adams let the members know he went on the tour with the Southern Nevada Health District and commented on the trigger effect of making improvements.  Chairman McManus mentioned code challenges with the depth of the pool, the design issues of the pool and concerns ADA compliance with the current facility. He referenced the SH Architecture report and cost estimates for particular repairs at the current facility.  He said that at some point the committee will have to decide whether to repair the current facility or build a new complex.  Chairman McManus didn’t feel the committee had enough information at this time to make that decision. Member Carroll added that USA Swimming currently has locker room specifications that would require the current locker rooms to have major renovations in order to comply.  
4. Verbal report from Finance Director, Diane Pelletier, regarding preliminary information on financing options and available funding
Finance Director, Diane Pelletier, gave a presentation regarding the preliminary financing options and available funding. She explained the different cash funds and approved uses for these funds.  She referenced the power point information along with the Capital Improvement Plan Executive Summary.  Director Pelletier informed the members they may want to consider a voter approved ballot question authorizing use of Capital Improvement Funds to be set aside for future pool construction.  Chairman McManus asked if any effort has been made at this time to explore the grant opportunities. Director Pelletier said that some research has been done and that grants will continue to be looked at as possible funding sources.  She also mentioned the possibility of a 5-7 year pool funding savings plan and financing option for funding a future pool.  Chairman McManus asked about the legal interpretation for the use of track 350 land sales revenue as it is potentially related to payment of future pool debt. 
Members Jefferies asked if there is a certain amount of money currently available that the city could use for a new pool. Director Pelletier said that at this point there is currently no designated amount specifically set aside for a new pool. Chairman McManus discussed use of land sale funds and projecting future land sale revenue. Members discussed the possibility of changes to the long term Capital Improvement Plan as a potential funding source option for the new pool. Member Anderson stated that with any delay in construction for a new pool it would most likely cause an increase in the overall cost due to the increase cost of inflation. Chairman McManus voiced that in order for this committee to move forward, they need to have some idea of what money is available within the next two years. Director Pelletier stated that the only current debt is utility debt and that utility debt should be paid by the utility fund and land sale revenue should go to the general fund. 
5. For possible action: Discussion regarding line item estimates and

possibilities for cost reductions for the Boulder City Aquatic Center 
Public Works Director Keegan Littrell addressed the members regarding the possibility of items to be removed from the proposed community preferred pool design concept.  Members discussed removal of items they deemed as non-essential including outdoor pool feature, outdoor restrooms, fitness center, and racquetball courts.  Members discussed the possibility of adding these items later. Director Littrell informed the members he would take their recommendations and provide estimated cost calculations accordingly. 
6. For possible action: Presentation from Southern Nevada Health District

regarding the current pool facility and requirements to bring the existing facility up to current codes

Jeremy Harper from the Southern Nevada Health District (SNHD) provided the members a brief overview from his November 13, 2019 site visit of the Boulder City Aquatic Complex.  He said regulations have changed at least three times since these pools were built.  He educated members on minor remodel, major remodel and new construction and that different SNHD components go with each. He also said that the SNHD does not look at ADA requirements, structural compliances, or building codes. He said any non-modified areas would not need code updates.  He mentioned that the SNHD does have a waiver process depending on the scope of work with possibly renovating the current facility.   Mr. Harper did make the members aware that the site visit was a brief assessment of the facility. He answered final questions and mentioned that the current “bubble” is in compliance according to the SNHD and that the SNHD has no challenges with a stainless steel pool. 
7. For possible action: Discussion and consideration of the feasibility of

restoring the existing aquatic facility

Members briefly discussed the feasibility of restoring the current facility and a motion was made. 
Motion: To hold this agenda item for a later date.  

Moved by: Chairman McManus
Seconded by: Member Adams
Vote: all agreed   
AYE: Chairman Kiernan McManus, Member James Adams, Member Chad Anderson, Member Sara Carroll, Member Matthew Di Teresa, Member Carol Jefferies, and Member Martin Rihel (7)
NAY: None (0)
Absent: Member Terry Stevens
The motion was approved. 

8. For possible action: Discussion and staff direction regarding timelines associated with the municipal pool. 

Director Hall explained potential timelines associated with bond and ballot issues. Members requested the addition of the Ad Hoc Pool Committee resolution date requirements and the addition of a status report to City Council for January.   

9. For possible action: Discussion and staff directive regarding future agenda items

Members discussed future agenda items including an update from the Finance Department, an evaluation from the City Attorney regarding use of revenue from the sale of Track 350, a Myrtha Pool update including estimated costs, new construction estimates based on member recommendations, and a January status report for City Council. 

Member Adams asked for a possible change in the meeting time to better accommodate the public.  Chairman McManus said we need to take staff’s time into consideration and meetings are available on line for public viewing. Members wanted the 4PM meeting start time to continue. 
Public Comment- 
Fred Voltz – Requested participation numbers for pool currently regarding usage and suggested not building a new pool at all. 

There being no further business to discuss, Chairman McManus adjourned the meeting at 6:59 p.m.

____________________________________

Kiernan McManus, Chairman
ATTEST:
____________________________________

Julie Calloway, Parks and Recreation Manager
November 19, 2019 Municipal Pool Ad Hoc Committee Meeting     3

